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Jeffrey A. Martinovich
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P.0. Box 350
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December 15, 2019

Clerk of Courts

Lewis F. Powell Courthouse
1100 E. Main St., Suite 501
Richmond, VA 23219

Dear Clerks:

Please process and docket the enclosed Reply to the government's
Response. If possible, may I please request any available expediency
as the two issues both include a liberty stake?

Thank you very much for your comnsideration, and I hope everyone

has a wonderful holidays.

Sincerely,
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IN THE UNITED STATE COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FOURTH CIRCUIT

JEFFREY A. MARTINOVICH, g
e ) Case No. 19-6797
etitioner, ) (4:12cr101)
% (4:2018cv28)
v )
)
UNITED STATES, g
Respondent. g

REPLY TO GOVERNMENT'S RESPONSE TO AWARDED CERTIFICATES OF
APPEALABILITY AND INFORMAL OPENING BRIEF

NOW HERE COMES Jeffrey A. Martinovich, proceeding pro se, in a
Reply to Government's Response to Awarded Certificates of Appealability
and Informal Opening Brief.

First Mr. Martinovich respectfully objects to the government's
fraudulent narrative as repeated in this proceeding. Mr. Martinovich
reiterates his request for this Court's clerks and panel to please
READ THE TRUE, FACTUAL, EVIDENCE-BASED STATEMENT OF THE CASE, already
on the record as well as provided herein as an Attachment for the
convenience of this Court. [Doc. 277, 293, Atch.].

Second, Mr. Martinovich asserts that the Government has provided
nothing new. Mr. Martinovich has thoroughly, with evidence and
substantial documentation, already confuted each government, counsel
and prior-removed District Court rationalization, excuse and attempt
to obfuscate the clear ineffective assistance and substantial prejudice
to Mr. Martinovich at trial and on subsequent appeal. Mr. Martinovich
has line-by-line already invalidated these attempts to redirect and
mislead this court of review from the substantial documentation,

nonconclusory and nonfrivolous arguments, and clear Fourth Circuit

and Supreme Court well-settled precedent. [COA 19-6796; Reply 1:12cr101].
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Finally, for the sake of brevity in respect to this Honorable
Court, Mr. Martinovich below provides abbreviated replies for Ground I
and Ground XII, as well as further nullification of unfounded attempts

to find this ineffective assistance harmless.

ISSUE I: MARTINOVICH RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL WHEN
HIS ATTORNEY FAILED TO OBJECT TO JUDICIAL INTERFERENCE AT TRIAL

Herein by reference, Mr. Martinovich incorporates the full
argument of Issue I as presented in the COA/Informal Brief, as well
as in Memorandums [Doc. 277, 292], specific Affidavit Facts #1-35, 90,
106, 110-143 [Doc. 293], and Exhibits #1-43 [Doc. 280].

On March 3, 2016, Mr. Martinovich was greeted by court-appointed
counsel Mr. Lawrence Woodward back in Norfolk, Virginia for resentencing.
In response to Mr. Martinovich's expletives about the injustice of his
trial not being overturned, Mr. Woodward slapped the desk and yelled
back to Martinovich, "This is the normal level for review." Then he
raised his hand high over his head and stated, "And, because Broccoletti
never once objected, and I have no clue why, this is the level you
have to jump over. The court is never going to turn over plain error
on Doumar, because they'd have hundreds and hundreds of cases back
in front of them! The only reason you lost your conviction appeal is
because your attorney never objected. It's as simple as that!"

[Aff. #106, Ex. #16, Brief 16-4646/4648].

Mr. Martinovich's thorough 17-page Ground I submitted in this

instant COA/Informal Brief proves, incontrovertibly, ineffective

assistance of counsel satisfying Strickland's first prong as well

as Strickland's second prong at trial and on appeal. The government

and counsel's excuses and rationalizations attempt to obfuscate the
the tremendous evidence and lead this court of review to false

narratives, false assumptions and bald conclusions from sometimes
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nonsensical logic.

The government has presented nothing new. Mr. Martinovich has
already in this instant COA/Informal Brief and District Court Reply
confuted conclusively the government's Response, as well as counsel's
Affidavit. Mr. Martinovich has repeatedly asserted his actual and
factual innocence, including rejecting three separate short-term plea
offers, and notably refusing to admit any guilt even during the
fraudulent negotiations and debacle of resentencing September 29, 2016.
Mr. Martinovich relies on this Honorable Court to correctly assess the
incontrovertible foundation of transcripts, precedent, Affidavits,
Exhibits, Confidential Proceedings, and this Fourth Circuit's own Order,

all proving Ground I. [U.S. v. Martinovich, 810 F. 232 (4th Cir. 2016)].

ISSUE II: MARTINOVICH RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL WHEN
HIS ATTORNEY FAILED TO OBJECT TO TESTIMONY REGARDING THE
FINANCIAL INDUSTRY REGULATION AUTHORITY'S INVESTIGATION
INTO, AND SETTLEMENT WITH, MARTINOVICH

Herein by reference, Mr. Martinovich incorporates the full
argument of Issue II (Ground XII) as presented in the COA/Informal
Brief Ground XII, as well as in Memorandums [Docs. 277, 292], specific
Affidavits #246-270 (Doc. 293), and Exhibit #39 (Doc. 280).

In the thorough rebuke of counsel Mr. Broccoletti's actions at
trial in the Rule 29/33 Denials authored by the trial judge, the
Honorable Judge Robert Doumar excoriates Mr. Broccoletti over and over,
with a long list of examples, for ineffective assistance of counsel
at trial. And, Mr. Broccoletti, himself, artfully articulates the
extraordinary prejudice his failures created against the defendant,

Mr. Martinovich. Judge Doumar's berating of Mr. Broccoletti substantially

eclipses the requirements of Strickland's first prong, and Mr. Broccoletti's

factual assertions, as well as the significant precedent and evidence

rules presented, thoroughly exceed the demands of Strickland's second

prong.
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This argument is black and white with the government, the Court
and trial counsel all adamantly proclaiming and supporting its conclusion.
The attempts to parse an issue or rationalize an action fail by the
overwhelming, on-the-record, assertions of all parties. Mr. Martinovich's
submission in this instant COA/Informal Brief pages 33-39 clearly
presents all necessary Rules, precedent, transcripts, Orders, Affidavits
and Exhibits.

Judge Doumar eloquently summarized, '"Defendant's counsel did not
object to any of those questions when they were asked...did not object
to that line of questioning prior to engaging the witness in cross-
examination...did not object to that line of questioning on the day it
occurred...did not move for mistrial...(later) objection was untimely...
failed to raise timely objections to that testimony...did not object
to the jury's review of the indictment...saw fit to introduce dozens
of pages of sworn testimony before FINRA investigators.'" [R. 33].
Judge Doumar's condemnation of Mr. Broccoletti's ineffective assistance
made the point to also stress "(i)n his opening statement...in his
closing argument...defense counsel was responsible for the results
being referenced.

The extreme prejudice is artfully summarized by Mr. Broccoletti,
as well as the substantial submissions of settled law. 'The introduction
of the FINRA results so compromised the defendant's right to be tried
upon the evidence presented in the courtroom, and not on some other
investigation by another body, as to preclude his rights to a fair
trial...impression that a high ranking official with likely more experience
in the field of securities had already found Martinovich guilty...
would evidence that a former jury determined guilt be admissible if
that judgment was reversed on appeal...prejudicial to the extent it

warrants a new trial.'" [R. 33].
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The Honorable Judge Doumar's adlibbed and excited instruction,
delivered with the exact opposite language as agreed upon, ''doubly-
violated" Rule 408 and the Stipulation Agreement. ''The defendant's
organization was put out of business (!)" [Tr. p. 1106]. The indictment
containing the information which violated Rule 408 and the Stipulation
Agreement was reviewed by the jury. The list of prejudice goes on
and on.

Finally, the repeated attempts to, after-the-fact, claim these
issues were intertwined and 'didn't really matter," fly in the face of
all settled law presented herein, both judicial and academic, as well
as violate simple fifth-grade logic: if it wasn't so important, then
why so much consternation and written agreements in the first place,
along with so much contentious finger-pointing subsequently by counsel,
the government and the Honorable Judge Doumar?

"Testimony that jurors hear but was subsequently ruled inadmissible
nonetheless influences their decisions." [Steblay, Hosch, Culhance,

& McWethy (2006)].

"Jurors sometimes rely on cognitive heuristics when making
complicated judgments about the probative value of discrete pieces of
evidence, particularly when that evidence concerns issues about which
they have little expertise...other heuristics, including the hindsight
bias (seeing the possibility as more likely when one knows the outcome)...
have also been implicated in juror decision-making outcomes."
[Bornstein, Dept. of Psychology, U. of Nebraska; Greene, Psychology,
U. of Colorado C.S. (2000)].
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NOT HARMLESS

Herein, Mr. Martinovich provides more evidence and supporting
documentation, beyond the significant submission in this instant COA/
Informal Brief, to further confute the Government's grasps for harmless-
ness, to include jury instructions, split verdict and "overwhelming
evidence."

"(C)laims of ineffective assistance of counsel are not limited by
an appellate court's analysis whether a trial court plainly erred."

[U.S. v. Carthorne, 878 F. 3d 458 (4th Cir. 2017)]. As repeatedly

stressed by this Fourth Circuit's panel on appeal, if Mr. Broccoletti
had objected and provided effective assistance of counsel, the court
of review would not have been "constrained by plain error," and "under
harmless review, the judgment 'may stand only if there is no reasonable
probability that the practice complained of might have contributed to

the conviction.'" [Martinovich; U.S. v. Camacho, 955 F. 2d 950 (4th

Cir. 1992); U.S. v. Hasting, 461 U.S. 499, 103 S. Ct. 1974 (1983)].

"In making this showing, Petitioner need not demonstrate that his
counsel's unprofessional errors more likely than not altered the outcome

of the case." [Thompson v. Gansler, 734 Fed Appx 846 (4th Cir. 2019)].

Requiring the reviewing court to ensure that the guilty verdict

rendered at trial was '"surely unattributable to error.'" [Sullivan v.

Louisiana, 508 U.S. 275, 113 S. Ct. 2078 (1993)].

Obviously, claiming these egregious errors and ineffective
assistance '"did not contribute" beyond a reasonable doubt, or that
there's not a '"reasonable probability" that these failures "might have
contribute to" the conviction or previous denial on appeal, would

commit violence against common sense.
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JURY INSTRUCTION

Admirably, this Fourth Circuit has already concluded in this case,
"We recognize that one curative instruction at the end of an extensive
trial may not undo the court's actions throughout the entire trial."

[Martinovich].

"Moreover, the district court's jury instructions could not cure

the fatal defect." [U.S. v. Kingrea, 573 F. 3d 186 (4th Cir. 2009)].

"Juror's comprehension especially of judge's instructions is
generally poor. Performance varies depending on the subject matter
and testing format, but figures under 50% are not uncommon.'" [Bornstein,
Greene (2000)].

"Jurors' emotions and moods can affect their judgments in various
ways: by influencing the type of information processing in which they
engage, by inclining them to construe evidence in a direction consistent
with their moods, and by providing informational cues about the
appropriate verdict." [Feigenson, "Emotional Influences on Judgments,"
(2010)].

Obviously, to even begin to argue that a final jury instruction
(or the doubly-violating instruction snafu by Judge Doumar mid-trial)
cures these egregious errors and ineffective assistance, would throw
out the window all accepted psychology doctrine of group think, master-
servant dynamics and confirmation bias, along with Fourth Circuit and

Supreme Court well-settled law.

SPLIT VERDICT

The government has repeatedly attempted to rely on the fact that
Martinovich was not convicted on all twenty-six (26) counts as justification
that these egregious errors and ineffective assistance did not influence

the jury. Yet, the government employs failed logic and mischaracterizes
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cases such as U.S. v. Cornell in an attempt to compare apples to oranges

by extracting a few similar phrases. U.S. v. Martinovich contained

four weeks of misconduct, ineffective assistance and hundreds of violations
already determined error by this Fourth Circuit, while Cornell addresses

a judicial intervention at the very end to simply provide another Allen
charge for the jury to continue deliberations. The extraction of the

phrase '"split verdict,"

and the application to Mr. Martinovich's case,
is an irresponsible attempt to claim the jury was not influenced.

[Martinovich; Cornell].

Further, Cornell's assumptions find their genesis in U.S. v. West

and U.S. v. Lane, which specifically address how split verdicts may

indicate proper jury consideration in cases of joined defendants and
joined or mis-joined counts, all irrelevant to Mr. Martinovich's case.
A split verdict "strongly indicates' that the jury has considered the
evidence as to each count separately, rather than "allow[ing] the
evidence as to the misjoined [counts]...to affect the verdicts on the

other counts." [U.S. v. Lane, 474 U.S. 438, 450, 106 S. Ct. 725, 88

L. Ed. 2d 814 (1986); U.S. v. West, 877 F. 2d 281 (4th Cir. 1989)].

Obviously, these couple of cases applying the indications from
split verdicts address non-relevant legal matters or precedent in
comparison to Mr. Martinovich's case. A more relevant review of split
verdicts comes from this Fourth Circuit's Opinion in Curbelo. "Although
our careful review of the record indicates that the Government's case
was not 'simply overwhelming'...The same witnesses testified to all of
the counts, i.e., both those on which the jury acquitted, as well as
those on which it convicted. This certainly indicates that a reasonable
[] juror could have found the Government's evidence lacking (certainly
if without the Trial Court's misconduct or all parties' violations

of Rule 408 and Stipulation Agreement)." [U.S. v. Curbelo, 343 F. 3d
273 (4th Cir. 2003)].
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"OVERWHELMING EVIDENGCE"

Mr. Martinovich rejected the regulator's unfounded accusations
in the aftermath of the 2008 Financial Crisis and demanded his day
in arbitration court to defend his firm and employees. Mysteriously,
shortly before the opportunity to finally respond, FINRA "re-audited"
MICG's last five years of financials, moving millions of dollars from
the asset column to the liabilities column and literally closing MICG
overnight. [see "The Fall of MICG," Ash Press, 2017, Amazon, Doc. 328 ].
This action by FINRA (not EPV Solar or Hedge Funds) is what created
losses for Mr. Martinovich and other shareholders (see details in
Statement of the Case Footnote 5), and has been repeatedly inserted
as a bait-and-switch for losses instead of the implications of EPV Solar
pursuant to the indictment, misinforming any juror and apparently the
two prior-removed District Courts. EPV Solar represented less than 27
of any MICG client's portfolio. Mr. Martinovich has initiated
substantial civil preparation to recover these assets for shareholders.

Subsequently, the U.S. Attorneys Office pursued this action under
the impression that with this illegal closure of MICG, Mr. Martinovich
would quickly accept a plea agreement in order for the government to
continue their 987 conviction rate. As stated by the U.S. Attorneys
Office on "60 Minutes," "Guys in three-piece suits don't like to go
to prison." Yet, the miscalculation was that Mr. Martinovich was not
born with a silver spoon in his mouth, had built this billion-dollar
firm from zero, and had long-ago deeply instilled the U.S. Air Force
Academy's Honor Code that "We will not lie, steal or cheat, nor tolerate
among us anyone who does."

As defense counsel Mr. Broccoletti repeatedly told Mr. Martinovich
that there was zero evidence of wrongdoing [Aff. 31, 32, Ex. 31], Mr.

Martinovich was that anomaly that stood up for the truth and again

9
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rejected government plea offers of seven years, five years and finally
three years. Therefore, the government was left to employ a large
number of rightfully-angry clients due to the closure, low-level
financial advisors now reaping tremendous financial benefits from taking
over these client accounts, and inflammatory lifestyle testimony with

no probative value.

The government has repeatedly presented "28 witnesses and 250
exhibits" as a metaphor, a trope, for overwhelming evidence. This
mischaracterization is derived from their strategy: if there's not
one condemning witness, then provide 28, and if there's not one damning
piece of evidence, then present 250, and repeatedly claim "overwhelming
evidence" until the narrative is accepted as truth. Yet, the narrative
is false.

Yet, ironically, the actual evidence repeatedly supports Mr.
Martinovich's assertions of innocence with actual transcripts, precedent,
and a plethora of supporting documentation in 304 Affidavit facts and
43 Exhibits [Docs. 293, 280, 277]. This instant COA/Informal Brief
presents a subset of nine (9) specific, documented occurrences from
trial testimony and evidence which prove there is no basis for conspiracy
or fraud. Any objective observer studying the factual record, not the
inflammatory, obfuscating narratives, would definitely conclude that
there is most certainly overwhelming evidence - overwhelming evidence
in favor of Mr. Martinovich's defense. At a bare minimum, there is
more than ample evidence in Mr. Martinovich's favor with which the
court may not "ensure that the guilty verdict rendered at trial was

" or confirm "there is no reasonable

'surely unattributable to error,'
probability that the practice complained of might have contributed to

the conviction." [Sullivan; Hasting].

10
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1. Mens rea, fraud: The actual record provides zero evidence that Mr.
Martinovich knew or believed that the EPV Solar price was fraudulent,

yet contains exactly the opposite support. The testimony, mainly of
government witnesses, renders the allegation of fraud by Martinovich
insufficient as a matter of law because there simply existed no matrix

by which the government could have shown Martinovich made any false
representations to the value of EPV. When the government alleges a

scheme or artifice to defraud, the accused must also know of its fraudulent
nature. Given that expert Lynch repeatedly testified that the per

share price of EPV - subsequently published by Martinovich or communicated
by Martinovich that he was informed it was likely increasing - was valid,
as well as the auditor Umscheid repeatedly testified that he further
approved this per share price, no false representation could have been
made by Martinovich given that the valuation was neither false nor

fraudulent. see Neder v. U.S., supra 527 U.S. at 25; U.S. v. Ham, supra

998 F. 2d at 1254 (if the scheme or artifice was to obtain money by
false representations, the accused must also know that the representations

were both material and false).

There was zero evidence presented, because there was none, that
Martinovich believed the EPV Solar price was fraudulent or the investment
would not be a successful venture. "To convict a person of mail fraud
or wire fraud...the government must prove that the defendant acted

with specific intent." [U.S. v. Wynn (4th Cir. 2012)].

Subsequently, the convictions for Money Laundering under 18 U.S.C.
§ 1957 are also not legally valid once determined that there is no
false or fraudulent statement upon which to base a conviction. In
order to sustain a conviction under 18 U.S.C. § 1957, the government

must prove that the funds were obtained from a specified illegal activity.

In this case, the only illegal activity alleged was fraud. If the

11
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funds used in the various transactions which form the basis of
convictions under 18 U.S.C. § 1957 were not obtained through fraud,

then those counts must, as a matter of law be dismissed.

2. The prosecution can rise no higher than the evidence and sworn
testimony of its key witness, solar valuation expert Mr. Lynch, called
by the government, not given immunity, and the only witness to testify
he performed the valuations and set the specific per share pricings.

COUNSEL: "When you fixed it on the last amount of $2.88, you felt that
also was a reasonable figure based upon the value of the company?

LYNCH: "Correct." [Tr. p. 445].

COUNSEL: "And in the attachment you say 'consequently it is my conclusion
that the share value of $2.88 and the overall company valuation
of approximately $500 million arrived at earlier in this memo

is conservative,' correct?"
LYNCH: "Yes."
COUNSEL: "And the share value of $2.88 is highlighted, correct?"
LYNCH: "Correct."

COUNSEL: "And by signing this you are representing the contents of that
valuation under your signature, correct?"

LYNCH: "Correct." [Tr. P. 479].
JUDGE: "And yet your value went to $2.88 after the crash?"
LYNCH: "Well, because the market crashes doesn't mean all the stocks

in it crash." [Tr. p. 485].

The government offered no evaluation of EPV that disputed the
valuation performed by Lynch. Lynch was the only witness in the trial
to testify that he had performed a valuation of EPV and set forth a
per share pricing. Mr. Lynch's uncontroverted affirmations at trial as
to the accuracy and validity of the $2.88 per share price wholly negates
any allegation that Martinovich's reliance and publication of that value
to investors (and use of it for the calculation of year end performance

fees) were representations both material and false.

3. The Venture fund's independent lead auditor, a member of the AICPA

Auditing Standards Board, repeatedly confirmed proper procedures,

analysis and authorizations with his firm's audit oversight.

12
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UMSCHEID:

UMSCHEID:

UMSCHEID:

UMSCHEID:

"I performed an audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards...so my audit was focused on the cash transactions

in and out and the valuations of the companies that the hedge
funds held, so the value of the companies that Venture Strategies
held." [Tr. p. 2452, 2453].

"(B)ecause of the bond raise (Jefferies & Co. $77 million
raise for EPV) there was an intrinsic value to the stock of
$2.88 per share, based on the bond raise." [Tr. p. 2532].

"I looked at the information I had been emailed, with balance
sheets and projections and everything else, and looked at
what he had here (Lynch $2.88 valuation), and they correlated
together." [Tr. p. 2540].

"Yes, I -- I approved -- I gave my opinion that the asset
value that they put at $2.88 was reasonable, yes." [Tr. p. 2542].

There is no false or fraudulent statement upon which to base a

conviction.

4. MICG

investment bankers and the Venture Fund's independent auditors

thoroughly vetted solar valuation expert Mr. Lynch's qualifications

and experience.

GIFIS:

LYNCH:

GLASSER:

COUNSEL:

AUDITOR:
COUNSEL:
AUDITOR:

"The auditor looked at (the report) and wanted some improvement
in its presentation, some reference to FASB standards, some
information about Mr. Lynch's background and qualifications as
ani appraiser. And he had seven points he was raising."

"I've been involved in and around the solar industry since 1977...
My experience was in analyzing various solar companies and in
performing work as an equity analyst on public solar companies

to raise financing. I was considered to be an expert in the
segment of the solar industry that involved technology." [p. 446].

"I think this will be the absolutely best, most valid analysis
that we could ever get. Peter Lynch, you recall, is my old

friend who introduced me to EPV. He is a brilliant technology
analyst and investor and focuses almost entirely on solar."[p. 717].

"Now, based upon the questions and answers that you received,
did you make a determination about Mr. Lynch being competent
and objective?"

"I did."
"And what was that decision?"

"I believed he was competent and objective to do the job." [p.2462].

5. The independent auditor, Mr. Umscheid of Harbinger, PLC, was a

licensed

and industry-respected audit and valuation expert who adamantly,

repeatedly affirmed the correct pricing and procedures, even in the

13
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face of egregious intimidation from Judge Doumar.

UMSCHEID: "I was actually on the Auditing Standards Board for three
years. I actually wrote the auditing standards that were
applied in '08." [Tr. p. 2453-2454].

There is no false or fraudulent statement upon which to base a

conviction.

6. The government repeatedly claims that they seized hundreds of
thousands of email communications from MICG - the medium for the great
majority of corporate communications - yet they did not produce one
communication showing Mr. Martinovich believed the pricing, the investment

or any of the proceedings to be false or fraudulent.

7. Whether expert Lynch personally knew that MICG investment bankers
were utilizing his valuation report, or not, is factually, industry-
regulatory, and legally irrelevant. It is simply part of the irrelevant
narrative to obfuscate the truth for a non-industry jury.

COUNSEL: "Is there any qualification for what the purpose of the opinion
letter was?"
AUDITOR: "No, there is no qualification on this whatsoever at all."

COUNSEL: "Did you ever see any qualifications on any of the valuations
from Mr. Lynch as to the purpose of the valuation?"

AUDITOR: '"Mr. anch never qualified his valuation in any of the valuations
I saw.

JUDGE: "He never qualified any of the valuations?"

AUDITOR: "No, Your Honor, they were all open valuations which means --
(interrupted by Court)." [Tr. p. 636, 2549].

Open valuations are the most common form which denote the valuation

is suitable for multiple purposes and may be taken at face value.

8. The pricing came to MICG and Martinovich from expert Lynch and
investment banker Glasser, as proven in trial testimony - not in some
other fraudulent method proposed in the government narrative.

JUDGE: "So Mr. Martinovich really had nothing to do with the value;
it was only Glasser. Is that correct?"

AUDITOR: "That would be my assumption, yes, Your Honmor." [Tr. p. 2523].

14
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COUNSEL: "Did you make those changes on that (valuation report)?"
GLASSER: "I did." [p. 834].

COUNSEL: "Did you know what the number was at that time?"

C0O0: "I think there was a discussion of it being around $2.88."

COUNSEL: "And how did that discussion come to play?"

CO0: "Bruce (Glasser) said that that was a valid number for the
funds...I assumed he got it from Gifis and/or Lynch." [p. 2362].

CFO: '""Mike Feldman, the chief financial officer of MICG testified

that Lynch was the individual who created the valuation for
EPV (J.A. 452, 488-491)." [No. 13-4828, p. 24].

9. In direct contravention to the government narrative of Martinovich
enriching himself and refusing returns to clients, MICG Venture Fund
and Partners Fund auditors, Harbinger PLC, presented on the record
'""MICG HEDGE FUNDS REDEMPTIONS - DISTRIBUTIONS," as submitted as Exhibit #35
(Doc. 280) and attached herein for this Court's convenience.

In the 2008-2009 period of government review, MICG distributed
to investors, outside of any distributions to Martinovich or other
MICG employees, $441,538 from the Venture Fund and $2,464,775 from
the Partners Fund in 2008, and $319,783 from the Venture Fund and
$1,380,125 from the Partners Fund in 2009. This $4,606,221 was distributed
to forty-four (44) investors while the evidence and testimony proves
that Mr. Martinovich, personally, seeded these funds with over $500,000,
as well as personally invested another $500,000 of capital into MICG
during this period to help fund acquisitions of advisor practices from
multiple firms and banks, to include Merrill Lynch and UBS Securities.

Facts. Math. Not narratives.

10. The narrative that Martinovich duped the world and all of these
highly-educated, highly-licensed professionals to fraudulently set

a price, approve the procedures, and subsequently audit and approve a
fraudulent conspiracy is more fantastic than the ridiculous narratives

which captivate our media and country today. The MICG Chief Operating

15
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Officer (C00), Mr. Cadieux, refuted this narrative, MICG Hedge Fund

Council Member, Mr. Monroe, refuted this narrative, MICG Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), Mr. Feldman, refuted this narrative, MICG Controller,

Ms. Russell, refuted this narrative, key government witness solar valuation
expert, Mr. Lynch, adamantly refuted this narrative, and the highly-
respected independent auditor, Mr. Umscheid, strongly refuted this

narrative. Facts on the record.

Mr. Martinovich respectfully submits that the evidence presented
by the government is obviously not overwhelming, and most certainly
does not eclipse the standards of review where the judgment 'may stand
only if there is no reasonable probability that the practice complained

of might have contributed to the conviction.'" [Camacho; Hasting].

Better yet, Fourth Circuit Judge Michael said it best, "I cannot

find this overwhelming evidence.'" [U.S. v. Strassini, 59 Fed. Appx.

550 (4th Cir. 2002)].

DELUSORY

Mr. Martinovich submits, with great respect to the Department of
Justice, that the government's Response employs the tired repetition of
a false narrative presented as a factual 25-page Statement of the Case -
Procedural Review in order to beguile this Court's clerks and busy panel.
The first 25-pages are factually inaccurate, as well as misleading by
their omissions. The remainder supplies the cut-and-paste cases used for
a thousand sumbissions with a few references to applicable cases, such
as Carthorne, but with attempts to distort the simple legal conclusions
relevant to Mr. Martinovich's case.

There is nothing new. The legal arguments simply repeat the
submissions in District Court by the governmment and counsel which are

all already confuted and debunked by the actual evidence in Mr.

16
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Martinovich's COA/Informal Brief submission. For example, the government
claims the '"court went to great lengths to ensure the parties steered
clear of referencing the fact that FINRA forcefully closed MICG's
doors," yet the Honorable Judge Doumar, himself, yelled, "the defendant's
organization was put out of business." [Tr. p. 1106]. The government
repeatedly submits that at least counsel Mr. Broccoletti "did alert
counsel for the government about his concerns about the Court's conduct,"
yet the District Court and this Fourth Circuit have already, repeatedly
denied the Grounds claiming any legal validity to this issue.
[Gound XIV]. The government states ''the defendant attempted to delay
and cover up his scheme by making partial redemption payments,' yet
this narrative is preposterous as $4.6 million was returned during
this period to 44 investors - that would be quite a cover up! [Ex. 35,
Reply Atch. 2]. The government attempts to obfuscate the record by
continually referring to the "memorandum disallowed due to its
excessive length,'" yet the Amended Affidavit submitted and accepted
by the Court contains all of the submitted evidence and documentation.
[Doc. 293].

And, the list goes on and on, with the government's modus operandi
to continually repeat the narrative until it is accepted as fact.
Mr. Martinovich respectfully requests this Honorable Panel take notice
of the overwhelming evidence and legal argument of these two instant
issues, and see through the fog and friction of the government's

reiterative Response.

17
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CONCLUSION

This has been a long, circuitous path back to the truth and
justice. Mr. Martinovich respectfully submits that he has satisfied

for both issues Strickland's first and second prongs, as well as

thoroughly debunked all government and counsel rationalizations and
assertions of benignancy. Mr. Martinovich respectfully requests this
Honorable Court vacate the District Court's Denial of his § 2255 Petition
to Vacate this conviction and sentence, and direct the District Court

to Vacate the Case 4:12cr101 conviction and sentence.

With great respect,

Date: ,/;L/@/f,zmz

AFFIDAVIT OF JEFFREY A. MARTINOVICH

I, Jeffrey A. Martinovich, proceeding pro se, hereby attest under
penalty of perjury that the above Reply is true and correct to the

best of my knowledge, pursuant to Title 28 U.S.C. § 1746.

e Al Clpust Mt

reﬁjA Mark1nov1ch

STATEMENT WITH RESPECT TO ORAL ARGUMENT

Mr. Martinovich respectfully suggests that oral arguments are

necessary and is prepared to present his Grounds.

Atchs:

1. Statement of the Case
2. Exhibit 35 - Redemptions & Distributions
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MICG Venture Strategies 2008
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Bradshaw
Duester
Frohman
Merritt
Sharrett
Teller

. Osbourne
Stevenson

Gisvold
Stemple
Berry

. Jung

Mullins

. Berry

TOTAL

$109,427
$103, 331
$ 16,600
$108,652
$109,128
$210,087
$ 94,996
$ 52,148
$135,535
$607,187
$ 90,378
$208,889
$208,898
$273,992

$2,464,775

MICG Partners Fund 2009

Casey
Oneil
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TOTAL

MICG Venture Strategies 2009

Deluca
Taylor

$145,485
$ 72,745
$148,308
$ 75,000

$441,538
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Frohman
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. Huges
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Stiles

. Swain

. Mrazik

. Coleman
. Cowling
. Crockett
. Mitchell
. Wassmer
. Cadieux

TOTAL

* Accounting Prepared by Harbinger, PLC, MICG Hedge Funds
Independent Auditors.

Reply Atch. 2

$ 43,587
$215,050
$ 74,000
$ 78,597
$185,518
$ 68,545
$199,954
$ 69,274
$ 63,732
$ 21,480
$ 84,246
$179,640
$ 20,575
$ 32,501
$ 43,426

$1,380,125

23

Rice

Moore

<O R"R=EH3 o

TOTAL

Trieshmann
Cowling
Stiles
Richman
Hughes
Taylor

Shumaker
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35,293
17,533
48,939
56,249
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11,652
11,652
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23,495
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Atch. 35
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Mr. Martinovich grew up in Dayton, Ohio, with his father
working in Government Civil Service and his mother working as a
secretary in the Sears Service Department. Martinovich excelled
in academics and sports and received a Congressional Appointment
to the United States Air Force Academy from Ohio Representative
Honorable Tony Hall.

At the Academy, Mr. Martinovich was a member of the
basketball team and the rugby team, and he graudated with a B.S.
in Business Management in 1988. He served his country in The
First Gulf War in the F-117 Stealth Fighter Program at Tactical
Air Command Headquarters, Langley Air Force Base, Virginia.
While serving in the Air Force, Mr. Martinovich also attended
night school, earning an MBA from The College of William and Mary
in 1992,

With an Honorable Discharge in 1992, Mr. Martinovich began a
second career in the investment industry. Building upon early
success, Martinovich became Founder and CEO of MICG Investment
Management, LLC. MICG grew rapidly and earned a national
reputation as a successful wealth management firm.

By 2007, MICG employed fifty employees and fifty independent
agents with eight retail branches in Virginia, Washington D.C.,
and New York City. MICG served over 3,000 clients in 42 states
and 5 countries while offering financial planning, insurance,
investment banking, hedge funds, real estate, mortgages, lending

and trust services. MICG managed $1 billion in client assets
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spread among a highly-diverse allocation of over 1,000 direct
investments.[AFF.#1]. Although MICG's revenue increased an
average of 367% per year for over fifteen years, Mr. Martinovich
had not increased his personal salary since 1998, choosing
instead to allocate the increased yearly revenue to MICG's
significant growth.[AFF.#2].

Under Mr. Martinovich's leadership, MICG also earned the
reputation of a top community and charity supporter everywhere a
new branch office was opened. Every MICG teammate, and their
family, committed a great deal of time, and fortunate financial
resources, in support of local charities and community missions.
Martinovich, himself, became President of Big Brothers Big
Sisters, Chairman of the Childrens Village, Board Director for
the Christopher Newport University Luter School of Business,
Board Director for the United Service Oranizations (USO),
Chairman of Virginia for the Young President's Organization
(YPO), and deeply involved with numerous other civic
organizations. Multiplying this charitable commitment amongst
the members of the MICG team generated a tremendous positive
social impact, with so many communities relying on MICG's

success.[AFF.#3].

In 2008, based on its exemplary regulatory history, MICG was
selected as a beta test client for the new joint regulatory
examination created by the SEC and FINRA for advanced firms
operating as both Broker-Dealers (B/D) regulated by FINRA, as
well as Registered Investment Advisors (RIA) regulated by the
SEC.[AFF.#4]. This experiment had many political and public

opinion struggles as the 2008 Financial Crisis perfect storm came
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ashore. [See "The Fall of MICG," Ash Press 2017, Amazon
Books ].[AFF.#5].

Following the outing of Bernie Madoff's $50 billion hedge
fund ponzi scheme, the examination turned its focus to MICG's
three proprietary hedge funds. MICG provided a broad array of
alternative investments for client portfolios to include managed
futures funds, real estate investment trusts, private equity, and
hedge funds. Beginning in 2001, clients invested in the MICG
Partners fund, followed by the MICG Anchor Strategies Fund, and
finally the MICG Venture Strategies Fund. These MICG platforms
provided clients access to institutional money managers and
investment vehicles previously not accessible to this investor
base. These funds invested in a wide array of equity, debt,
private, and public fund allocations.

Although not legally mandated, or required by industry
regulators, Mr. Martinovich elected to employ external valuation
experts, as well as independent fund auditors, to execute pricing
and valuation metrics for each private investment. These extra
regulatory processes, in addition to MICG's robust internal
Compliance Division, were employed to ensure fund transparency
and independent performance evaluations for MICG clients.

The Partners Fund operated primarily as a fund-of-funds
platform which diversifed assets among multiple hedge funds and
targeted a consistent, positive return, regardless of up or down
public markets. Through 2007, Partners had successfully
accomplished this objective.

The Anchor Strategies Fund was employed to invest directly

into Tiptree Financial, a private fixed-income investment fund
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headquartered in New York City which normally required higher
minimum client investments. This fund performed well, even
during the mortgage-bond market collapse, posting a positive 4
annual return when many well-known bond funds posted shocking
negative 20-30% returns. Tiptree would later participate in a
public transaction providing a significant total return of over
$4 million to MICG investors. These positions were fortunately
held in both the MICG Anchor Strategies Fund, as well as the MICG
Partners Fund.[AFF.#6].

As FINRA and the SEC began their beta test examination in
2008, the regulators primarily focused on MICG's newest fund,
Venture Strategies. This fund was designed to be primarily a
private equity portfolio which, when fully invested, would hold
twelve to fifteen positions in private company debt and equity
positions. The private equity sector had been the top performing
category for the previous twenty-five years, with liquidity
events realized longer term when sub-investments achieved public
transactions, or were eventually acquired by other companies or
investment vehicles. When the regulators' examination, and
eventual allegations, halted the operations of these funds, MICG
Venture Strategies had so far placed four investment positions: a
short-term fixed income allocation, an industrial bond position
(Solaia Capital) underwritten by Deutschebank, an interest in
GSDP which held a majority ownership stake in a British football
team and real estate properties, and a private solar industry
corporation (EPV Solar) currently preparing for an Initial Public
Offering (IPO).[AFF.#6].

At the close of 2008, FINRA informed MICG that, for the
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first time, due to joint ownerships between the hedge funds and
the Broker-Dealer (B/D), MICG must estimate asset pricings, fund
performance, and management fees prior to the December 31, 2008,
closing date. Based on these estimateé, MICG must journal
account balances, management fees, and expenses. Otherwise,
these receivables and liabilities would now be non-allowable
transactions, and would generate an incorrect FINRA Net Capital
computation. Based on this FINRA directive, MICG reached out to
fund managers and private direct investments to obtain valuation
estimates for the end of year tentative accounting. Martinovich
directed the firm to simply do their best, as they were aware
that the valuations, fees, and performance calculations would
likely change significantly once the auditors' actual valuations
were conducted following year end. In the private equity
industry, fund managers are constantly dealing with estimates as
FASB accounting and IRS tax calculations are reported on
different schedules, with many private corporations not filing
final tax numbers until the following October 15th.[AFF.#7].
[Footnote 1: Based on the fluctuations in the final pricing from
the external valuation experts' reports, and the adjustments made
by the hedge fund auditors, FINRA and the Government attempted to
retroactively claim the valuations were fraudulently manipulated.
Later, at trial, Mr. Martinovich, multiple MICG managers, the
fund auditors, and the solar valuation expert would all supply
consistent testimony to these compliant and transparent pricing

actions. (See Trial Test. Lynch, Martinovich, Cadieux, Monroe,
Umscheid) ].

[Footnote 2: Addressing the MICG Venture Strategies investment in
EPV Solar, which later became the focus of the government's
indictment, Mr. Martinovich, the MICG management team, the fund
auditors, and the solar valuation expert (a government witness)
all, again, later testified congruently as to who prepared the
valuations, what was the correct pricing, that the expert was
vetted by the auditors, and that Mr. Martinovich and MICG never
relied on any fraudulent representations.
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MICG Venture Strategies first purchased shares of EPV Solar
in 2007 when this investment opportunity was intréduced by Mr.
Bruce Glasser, an investment banker in MICG's New York City
office. After significant due diligence, Venture Strategies
purchased an eventual 1,805,000 shares at the initial price of
$1.15 per share. Mr. Glasser condﬁéted the analysis and the
communications with EPV Solar valuation experts, and he kept the
MICG management team well informed of EPV's progress. Solar
expert, Mr. J. Peter Lynch, would later testify that he had never
met or communicated with Mr. Martinovich.[AFF.#8,#9].

At the inception of the Venture Strategies Fund, MICG priced
all sub-investments at their acquisition price for ease of
reporting, and the fund would only change pricing at liquidity
events - actual sales or future acquisitions. Yet, the licensed
auditors, Harbinger PLC, directed MICG that it must evaluate the
positions and hold these investments at Fair Market Value (FMV)
to be in compliance with FASB and AICPA accounting and valuation
standards. At this point, Mr. Martinovich directed the firm to
employ external, independent valuations and audits, as opposed to
executing this compliance function internally. The term "mark to
market'" is commonly used in the industry for this
function.[AFF.#10].

MICG acquired small lots of equity shares or odd bond lots
at prices below FMV on numerous occassions as was, of course, the
goal of the fund managers. Addressing EPV Solar, a subsequent
small lot purchase from an individual stockholder was executed

for the same $1.15 initial purchase price during the same

(o))
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calendar year in which the valuation expert, Mr. Lynch, had
determined the FMV price to be $2.88, based primarily on the
$2.88 per share valuation used for a $77 million investment into
EPV Solar by Wall Street firm, Jefferies & Co. .This $2.88
valuation was also vetted and approved by the fund auditors,
Harbinger PLC, who oversaw the valuation process and held the
final decision each year on which values to apply or
adjust.[AFF.#11].

In the MICG hedge funds, the underlying asset values,
comprising the total fund Net Asset Value (NAV) (the price), were
adjusted at the close of each quarter, with the subsequent
investors entering the fund at this cost basis. The great
majority of the investors noted by the government invested into
the MICG Venture Strategies Fund prior to December 31, 2008, and
therefore, their purchase price was never at the disputed $2.88,
but was at $2.13, the previous year's reported FMV price by Mr.
Lynch.[AFF.#12].

[Footnote 3: At trial, District Court Judge Doumar would state
that he believed the $2.13 prior valuation price to be valid,
stating, "Peter Lynch made a valuation. It was unequivocal.
There were no ifs or buts about it, other than it was requiring
the matter to go public in the future...so I don't have any
problem with it." (Tr. p. 3229). Therefore, even if the $2.88
price was inflated, nearly no investor actually paid this price.
Also, in spite of the Court-approved value for the EPV Solar
position, the entire investment was deemed fraudulent for
purposes of the loss calculation at Mr. Martinovich's sentencing,
and re-sentencing, with this mathematical error adding
approximately eight years to his sentence].[AFF.#12].

During this 2008-2009 time frame, the period of the

government's review, Mr. Martinovich and MICG distributed over

$4.6 million back to investors from the MICG hedge funds through
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redemptions and earnings distributions. The Financial Crisis and
the Madoff hysteria had prompted a good number of MICG investors
to request redemptions from any slice of their portfolio titled a
"hedge fund." These returns were distributed to 44 investors,
with specific totals of $2,906,313 redeemed in 2008, and
$1,699,908 redeemed in 2009, not including distributions to
employees and owners. [See Atch. 35][AFF.#13]. These returns of
capital and earnings would later not be rebated against any loss
calculation by the government or the District Court at the

initial sentencing, or the re-sentencing.

Again specific to EPV Solar, at the close of 2008, MICG
Venture Strategies Fund paid the quarterly management fee and
yearly incentive fee to the MICG Broker-Dealer. The EPV Solar
valuation increase from the District Court-approved $2.13 per
share to the $2.88 per share report valuation accounted for an
increase in fees of $140,062.64 paid to MICG. This increase
accounted for 1.87 of the approximate $8,000,000 in MICG total
fees during this period. [See Atch. 34][AFF.#14]. Also during
this period under review, the government asserted that MICG
fraudulently induced 14 new investors to invest in the Venture
Strategies Fund. These 14 investors would be among the over

3,000 investors MICG served during this period.[AFF.#15].

At the end of 2008 and well through 2009, Mr. Martinovich
and MICG's executive team strongly believed in the future success
of the Venture Strategies Fund, as well as the prospects for EPV

Solar's eventual public offering. Mr. Martinovich's actions and
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communications were fully congruent with his belief in these
investments. MICG promoted these non-public market allocations
during this volatile period as alternatives to the suffering
stock and bond markets. MICG representatives also rebalanced to
other non-correlated asset categories, such as managed futures,
real estate trusts, and annuitized fixed rates. Consistent with
his beliefs, Mr. Martinovich allocated new investments into the
Venture Strategies Fund for close friends, MICG family members,
and close business associates. [See Shareholder Ltrs. Goldberg,
Cadieux, Wassmer].[AFF.#16].

In 2009, well after the contested valuations, Mr.
Martinovich traveled to EPV Solar Headquarters with a close
business associate, Mr. Biagas, who owned a successful Virginia
electrical contractor and was a member of the global Young
President's Organization (YPO) with Mr. Martinovich. After Mr.
Biagas' management team toured the EPV Solar factory in New
Jersey, as well as met with EPV's management team, Mr. Biagas,
and a fellow YPO member, Mr. Gadams, made substantial investments
into EPV. Mr. Biagas also began negotiations to initiate an EPV
Solar Distributorship Agreement in Virginia. Throughout 2008 and
2009, the period under review, Mr. Martinovich's communications
and actions identified only his full belief in the soundness of
the EPV Solar investment for MICG Venture Strategies' clients,

and for MICG.[AFF.#17].

Throughout the Financial Crisis and the ensuing slow
recovery, Martinovich and MICG believed that their comprehensive
wealth management business model, and their boutique size, was

the best-positioned formula for the next phase of the investment
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advice industry. And, many successful financial advisors at the
large Wall Street firms agreed. Mr. Martinovich took advantage
of the current market dislocation, as well as MICG's relatively
well-capitalized position, to acquire investment practices for
expansion. Mr. Martinovich acquired businesses from Merrill
Lynch, UBS Securities, Davenport Securities, Morgan Stanley, and
other banks and investment companies. Mr. Martinovich personally
injected over a million dollars in new capital, along with
contributions from other MICG shareholders, to fund acquisitions

and expansion.[AFF.#18].

Eventually, Mr. Martinovich had a conference call with
MICG's SEC contacts in which the SEC explained that they had
provided the MICG Compliance and Operations Departments its list
of fixes and recommendations to finish their regulatory
examination. At this point, MICG had participated in over fifty
regulatory exams and understood the process. But, the SEC
explained that FINRA was now focusing on hedge funds and would be
continuing this beta test examination.

FINRA greatly intensified their audit with a tremendous
volume of discovery requests, to include copies of 88,000 MICG
emails and dozens of boxes of document requests. FINRA also
summoned Mr. Martinovich, along with other MICG management
personnel, to the Philadelphia Regional Office to provide sworn
testimony focused on the operations of MICG's three hedge funds.
Following these independent testimonies, and the subsequent
review of the transcripts, MICG's securities attorneys determined

that the executive team, as well as the investment bankers, had

10
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followed correct regulatory and securities practices, as well as
provided consistent testimony among the executive

group. [AFF.#19]. Yet, the beta test examination continued.

In the second half of 2009 and into 2010, the U.S. domestic
solar power market began to collapse under delays in financing
and cancellation of tax credit programs due to the protracted
recovery from the Financial Crisis, as well as a tremendous
supply of solar panels infused by China, which panels were priced
below the cost of production (dumping). Eventually, hundreds of
U.S. solar companies would declare bankruptcy and close their
doors. [See Atch. 36]. The United States Government lost nearly
$2 billion of taxpayer dollars on solar company financing and
investments during this period. Possibly receiving the most
exposure, the U.S. Department of Energy lost $535 million on its
investment in Solyndra, LLC. On February 24, 2010, MICG Venture
Strategies Fund unfortunately received news that EPV Solar had
also declared Chapter 11 Bankruptcy, with the senior debt holders
seizing the assets of the company and leaving the common equity
shareholders, such as MICG, at the back of the line. This EPV
Solar investment represented point-two-percent (.2%) of MICG's
assets under management, as well as one-point-two-percent (1.2%)
of the average MICG client's portfolio which held EPV

Solar.[AFF.#20].

The bankruptcy of EPV Solar in 2010 provided FINRA
regulators a '"smoking gun" with which they now determined that
the MICG Venture Strategies Fund must have over-priced this

security back in 2008, and Mr. Martinovich and the executive team

11
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must have known that EPV Solar was not a sound investment, even
potentially filing bankruptcy two years later. In March of 2010,
FINRA released a public notice of allegations of improper
practices in the MICG Hedge Funds. This public press release
created great strain on the firm, the financial advisors, and the
MICG clients. During this post-crisis period of mortgage
failures and collapsed 401k plans, the regional media created
further panic and strain with consistent coverage of Martinovich

and MICG on the front page.

[Footnote 4: This use of the press to achieve regulatory
objectives was occurring across the country. For example, during
this same period, the government tipped the "Wall Street Journal
to cover the raid on Level Global's $4 billion hedge fund,
resulting in the collapse of the firm without any eventual
indictment or opportunity for redress (Ganek v. Leibowitz, 167 F.
Supp. 3d 623 (2nd Cir. 2016))].

MICG's securities attorneys, Wilson Elser of New York City,
and MICG's Broker-Dealer auditors, Harbinger PLC, conducted
numerous negotiations with FINRA agents and counsel. FINRA
demanded significant, public remedies during this period of
regulatory spotlight from Capitol Hill following the regulators'
failures to discover the prior massive trading and morteage
frauds. Mr. Martinovich and the MICG executive team refuted any
claims of wrongdoing, and Mr. Martinovich repeatedly demanded a
FINRA Arbitration Hearing be scheduled in order to defend MICG
and its employees.[AFF.21].

On Friday, May 7, 2010, at 4:00 PM, Mr. Martinovich received
a phone call from FINRA agents who stated that the beta test exam
had "switched gears" and the regulators had now "re-audited" the

previous five years of MICG's financial reports. FINRA stated

12
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that they had now "reclassified equity as debt," thus disallowing

millions of dollars of MICG shareholder equity investments in the
current Broker-Dealer Net Capital computations. FINRA stated
that, pursuant to FINRA regulations, MICG could not operate with
this deficiency. These same financials had been examined and
audited quarterly and annually for the previous five years by the
SEC, the CFTC, the SCC, the Broker-Dealer licensed auditors, and
by FINRA, themselves. Now, MICG was mysteriously out of
compliance.[AFF.#22].

Following the Financial Crisis, MICG's regional and national
competitors had participated in the taxpayer-funded Goverment
TARP program, accepting billions of dollars of citizens' taxes to
shore up their balance sheets and capital requirements. MICG had
not required, nor participated in, this taxpayer bailout, and had
argued strongly against the program.[AFF.#23]. Yet, now MICG was
not permitted to operate. For days, MICG's attorneys and
auditors argued with FINRA, but to no avail. On May 12, 2010,
MICG's Broker-Dealer license was withdrawn, without a hearing,
without redress, without due process.[AFF.#24].

The sudden closure of MICG Invesfment Management created a
fantastic ripple effect for clients, employees, shareholders,
bondholders, fundowners, vendors, aﬁd civic and charitable
organizations, all of whom relied on MICG's success. Lawsuits
and bankruptcies followed. One hundred associates searched for
new employment. Over 9,000 accounts were transferred, and eight

retail branches were closed.

Two days later, on May 14, 2010, FINRA regulators released

13
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Disciplinary Proceeding No. 2009016230501, Department of

Enforcement v. MICG Investment Management, LLC and Jeffrey A.
Martinovich. This Complaint alleged that in the MICG Venture
Strategies Fund, "in order to inflate the fees, the Respondents
assigned unjustifiably high values to the assets, never relying
on independent or legitimate valuations or valuation methods."
This year-long audit and subsequent closure of MICG resulted in a
complaint addressing less than 17 of MICG's investment assets and
operations.[AFF.#25]. Although EPV Solar accounted for only
point-two-percent (.2%) of MICG's investments, the sudden closure
of MICG greatly affected the private shareholders who had made
equity investments into MICG Wealth Management, the holding
company which owned the majority stake of the MICG Broker-
Dealer. These private shareholders were typically affluent,
long-term clients who had wished to also participate in the
fortunate success of MICG. Also, this closure affected private
investors in the MICG Convertible Subordinated Debt Offering
(Bond) which provided an attractive fixed return, with this
capital designated for the multiple acquisitions of practices
from Wall Street brokerage firms. Finally, this regulatory
examination and closure froze the assets and operations of the
multiple MICG hedge funds, severely affecting participation in
capital calls and liquidation opportunities, gravely harming the
eventual performance of the previously-successful

funds.[AFF.#26].

[Footnote 5: The alleged price inflations and higher management
fees, the foundation of the government indictment, were actually
minor losses per client, relative to their total investment
portfolio. In the following trial, sentencing, and re-
sentencing, the investor losses from the regulatory action, not
from the loss of EPV Solar, were consistently substituted when

14
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presenting stories of loss and cause and effect. At trial, the
government presented witness after witness with significant
losses from the FINRA action, not from the EPV Solar actions of
the indictment. The jury certainly could not discern the
delineation of these losses from the relatively minor,
unfortunate results of EPV Solar. The initial sentencing Court
included these significant numbers in the sentencing calculation
although there had never been one allegation of fraudulent
activity in the MICG Stock or Bond Offerings. Even at the
eventual re-sentencing, the government supplied, and greatly
affected, the sentencing Court with letters of financial loss -
from the FINRA illegal closure, not from the activities of the
indictment. Also, the government presented three witnesses,
again, at re-sentencing to speak of the effects of the FINRA
closure, although presented as the effects of Mr. Martinovich's
actions of the indictment. This bait and switch, from the
beginning has greatly affected the Court's understanding of the
loss and nexus of causation.[AFF.#27]].

For the following months, Mr. Martinovich wrestled with the
imbroglio of lawsuits, bankruptcies, displaced clients, and angry
shareholders, all the while demanding a FINRA Arbitration
Hearing. In January 2011, FINRA, in lieu of arbitration,
proposed an Offer of Settlement to MICG's lead securities
attorney, Benjamin Biard of Wilson, Elser, New York. FINRA
stated that if Mr. Martinovich followed through with Arbitration,
FINRA would pursue the Broker-Dealer licenses of multiple members
of MICG's executive team, and would fine MICG and Martinovich an
extra $1 million. FINRA proposed that if Mr. Martinovich, as
CEO, forfeited his significant number of Broker-Dealer licenses
for life, as well as the MICG license, the regulators would
withhold the fine and not pursue the other members.[AFF.#28].

This Offer of Settlement stated, '"'Respondents submit this
offer to resolve this proceeding and do not admit or deny the
allegations of the Complaint. Respondents also submit this offer

upon the condition that FINRA shall not institute or entertain,

at any time, any further proceeding as to Respondents based on

15
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the allegations of the Complaint, and ubon further condition that
it will not be used in this proceeding, in any other proceeding,
or otherwise, unless it is accepted by the National Adjudicatory
Council (NAC) Review Subcommittee, pursuant to FINRA Rule
9270.[Atch. 39][AFF.#29].

On February 1, 2011, Mr. Martinovich signed the Offer of
Settlement, and has ''regretted it every day since." ["Fall of

MICG," Ash Press 2017, Amazon Books].

On October 10, 2012, Mr. Martinovich was arrested and served
a federal indictment in the United States District Court, Eastern
District of Virginia, Case No. 4:12cr101, before the Honorable
Judge Robert A. Doumar. The indictment contained 26 Counts, to
include 18 U.S.C. § 1349 Conspiracy to Commit Mail and Wire
Fraud, 18 U.S.C.§ 1343 and 2 Wire Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341 and 2
Mail Fraud, and 18 U.S.C. § 1957 and 2 Engaging in monetary
Transactions in Property Derived from Specific Unlawful Activity.

The allegations of the indictment, as well as the discovery
evidence to include the 88,000 emails, were identical to the
Complaint settled by the previous FINRA Offer of Settlement,
which contained the non-release and non-action
provisions.[AFF.#30].

The government alleged, '"(T)he defendant executed a lengthy
and complex fraud by enticing investors to put their money into a
hedge fund he solely controlled through the use of false
representations and ommissions; falsely inflating the value of
the assets in the hedge fund to serve his own ends...Martinovich

developed a lavish exorbitant lifestyle...Rather than obtain

16
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independent valuations of the Venture fund's assets...Martinovich
doubled the value of the EPV Solar shares...because Martinovich
wanted to take a substantial fund management fee, Martinovich
denied redemption requests...He did not disclose the negative
impact the market crash had on EPV...the incentive fee served as
a needed injection of cash...increases that were rubber stamped
by the so-called valuation expert..."

MICG lead business attorney, Mr. Todd Lynn of Patten Wornom
Hatten and Diamonstein (PWHD), Newport News, Virginia engaged
federal criminal counsel, Mr. James Broccoletti of Zoby,
Broccoletti, PLC, Norfolk, Virginia. After an opportunity to
independently review the discovery evidence, Mr. Broccoletti
asked for an initial meeting. Mr. Broccoletti stated that it
appeared Mr. Martinovich '"had done nothing wrong, and if someone
had done anything wrong, it would have to be the crowd in New
York (EPV).'" When pressed by Mr. Martinovich for, '"What are our
chances?" Mr. Broccoletti responded that he believed, "We have a
90% chance of winning, because there is nothing here, but I
reserve 107 just in case they parade 25 grandmothers onto the
stand to say that you stole all their money.'" Mr. Broccoletti
would repeat this identical belief in a second meeting closer to
the trial date, both meetings with his paralegal Shannon in
attendance.[Atch. 31][AFF.#31].

Mr. Broccoletti also stated that the government, AUSA Mr.
Brian Samuels and AUSA Ms. Katherine Dougherty, had already
offered a plea bargain for seven years imprisonment, and that Mr.

Broccoletti had already responded, '"We are not

interested.'"[AFF.#32].

17
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As Martinovich and the team prepared for trial, Mr.
Broccoletti stated that the government had offered a second plea
agreement for five years imprisonment which, following a meeting
confirming that no one had found anything illegal or even
unethical, was again rejected.[AFF.#33].

Finally, shortly before the trial date, Mr. Broccoletti
stated, "Samuels (AUSA) has offered three years as his final
offer, but he won't put it in writing unless you first agree to
accept it, since you rejected the two previous offers."
Following one final meeting in which Mr. Broccoletti and his
paralegal confirmed their previous findings, Mr. Martinovich made
the decision to proceed to trial, and defend his employees and

himself. [Atch. 31][AFF.#34].

The trial began on April 10, 2013. The prosecution
presented a well-constructed narrative of a wealthy, successful
businessman and civic leader who turned to fraud and greed to
support his lavish lifestyle following the Financial Crisis.

Over the course of the four-week trial, the courtroom monitors
repeatedly displayed pictures of Mr. Martinovich's homes and
automobiles, and the Director of The Bellagio VIP Host Services
personally testified to describe Mr. Martinovich's trips to Las
Vegas. The prosecution skillfully presented witnesses who
described their lack of understanding of their investments, their
belief that all of their investments were liquid and‘available at
any time, and that they never understood the Private Placement
Memorandums, the Subscription Agreements, or the Comprehensive

Financial Plans prepared by MICG. Key to the conspiracy
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narrative was the belief that Mr. Martinovich had personally
tricked his executive team, the investment bankers, the solar
valuation expert, and the independent auditors, who all
fraudulently raised the price of EPV Solar in order for Mr.
Martinovich to ultimately earn more management fees.

Mr. Broccoletti, in turn, attempted to unwrap this fantastic
narrative for the layman jury with factual compliance policies,
hedge fund industry practices, and private equity valuation
standards. Yet, Mr. Broccoletti miscalculated the degree of bias
and interference presented by District Court Judge Doumar.[See
GROUNDS I,II,II No. 4:12crl101]. From the first moments, Judge
Doumar interrupted, interfered with, degraded, and showed great
bias against defense counsel, defense witnesses, and Mr.
Martinovich. Judge Doumar's egregious actions were subsequently
documented by the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals. "(I)n light of
the district court's demeanor at trial and its statements during
sentencing...it is necessary for a different judge to be assigned
to this matter...the district court's actions were in
error...interference in this case went beyond the pale...the
district court became so disruptive that it impermissibly
interfered with the manner in which the appellant sought to
present his evidence...such conduct tends to undermine the
public's confidence in the integrity of the judiciary." [United

States v. Martinovich, 810 F. 3d 232 (4th Cir. 2016)].

At one point in the trial following Judge Doumar's delivery
of a curative jury instruction exactly opposite of the
instruction just agreed upon by the prosecution and the defense,

defense counsel Mr. Broccoletti leaned over to Mr. Martinovich
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and stated, "Well, at least you just won your appeal."[AFF.#35].

The government's own witness, solar valuation expert Mr.
Lynch, strongly defended his reports stating, "(I)t is my
conclusion that the share value of $2.88 and the overall company
valuation of approximately $500 million arrived at earlier in
this memo is conservative.' Mr. Lynch stood behind his work
repeatedly confirming that he prepared the reports, that it was
his signature, that the price was highlighted, and that his
valuations were conservative. [Tr. p.445-485].

The other cornerstone of the compliance function,
independent auditor Mr. Umscheid, testified, "(B)ecause of the
bond raise (Jefferies & Co. $77 million raise for EPV) there was
an intrinsic value to the stock of $2.88 per share, based on the
bond raise...Yes, I -- I approved -- I gave my opinion that the
asset value that they put at $2.88 was reasonable, yes.'" [Tr.
p.2453-2542].

After four weeks of trial and multiple days of jury
deliberation, the jury forewoman declared there was a hung jury.
Yet, Judge Doumar insisted the jury return the following week,
and at this point, the lavish lifestyle narrative and Judge
Doumar's egregious influence won out over the defense's attempts
to explain hedge fund accounting. Mr. Martinovich was convicted
on 1 Count of Conspiracy, 4 Counts of Wire fraud, 5 Counts of
Mail Fraud, and 6 Counts of Money Laundering.

At sentencing, the prosecution asserted that the calculated
loss was $1.45 million, the defense proposed that any loss
determined must be below $400,000, and Judge Doumar inexplicably

settled on a loss of $1.75 million. The Court determined the
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Offense Level of 33 with a Guidelines range of 135-168 months.
Judge Doumar repeatedly asserted that the Guidelines were
mandatory, not advisory. The Court stated, "I will follow the
guidelines only because I have to," while also repeating that the
Guidelines did not give enough weight to all the good Martinovich
had done in his life. [Sent. Tr. p.6,7,15,75,91,94]. Mr.
Martinovich was sentenced to 140 months incarceration.

Mr. Broccoletti filed a Rule 29 Motion for Acquittal and a
Rule 33 Motion for New trial, yet these actions were denied with
the District Court explicitly faulting defense counsel for not
timely objecting and for violating primary trial stipulations.

[United States v. Martinovich, 971 F. Supp. 2d 553 (E.D. Va,

2013)].

Although the Court recommended a Minimum Security Facility
closest to home, and Martinovich's custody classification demands
this level, Mr. Martinovich was incarcerated at FCI Fort Dix, New
Jersey, a higher security prison in which he still remains. Mr.
Martinovich's formal Motions to be transferred to an institution
commensurate with his Security Level Classification have been
repeatedly denied by the Bureau of Prisons.

Mr. Martinovich was denied the right of self-representation
on appeal in contravention of Fourth Circuit Rule 46(f), and was
eventually assigned court-appointed appeal counsel, Mr. Lawrence
Woodward, of Virginia Beach, Virginia. Mr. Martinovich was
permitted to submit a Pro Se Supplemental Brief along with Mr.
Woodward's brief on the Merits. Martinovich's appeal submissions
argued that there was insufficient evidence for a conviction, the

Court's conduct was reversible error, the loss determination was
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in error, the Court's sentencing was reversible error, the
perjury enhancement was error, the money laundering charge was
error, the Court's jury instruction was error, and the forfeiture
and restitution calculations were invalid. [Case No. 13-4828].

On January 7, 2016, the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals
released the Order and Opinion vacating Martinovich's sentence
and replacing Judge Doumar pursuant to the earlier-noted
critiques of the trial and sentencing. Yet, the Appeals Court
went to great lengths, including a second concurring opinion, to
note that defense counsel Mr. Broccoletti's failure to object one
time to the Court's hundreds of errors failed to preserve this
over-arching determinant of the verdict for review on appeal. As
opposed to the lower bar of harmlessness and abuse of discretion
standards of review, Mr. Broccoletti's ineffective assistance
forced the Appeals Panel to be restricted to the extremely high
bar of Plain Error Review, at which level the panel believed it
could not overturn the conviction. The Appeals Court stated, "In
light of the plain error standard of review...we may not
intervene...Accordingly we must uphold the jury's

verdict...Again, however, we were constrained by plain error."

[United States v. Martinovich, 810 F. 3d 232 (4th Cir. 2016)].

The case was not remanded for a new, fair trial due to the
inexplicable lack of even one fifteen-second objection.

Mr. Woodward filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En

Banc, which were denied, and the Judgment Order and Mandate were

issued: Affirmed in part, Vacated in part, and Remanded [No. 13-

4828, Doc. Nos. 123, 125, 127, 132]. Mr. Woodward did not file a

Petition for Writ of Certiorari to the Supreme Court.

[\
to
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Mr. Martinovich next petitioned District Court Judge Jackson
for the right of self-representation for the upcoming re-
sentencing, but Martinovich was then returned to Norfolk,
Virginia, where he was served with a Superseding Indictment by,
once again, court-appointed attorney Mr. Lawrence Woodward.
There; Mr. Martinovich complained to Mr. Woodward about the
unfair standard of plain error review, and Mr. Woodward
responded, 'The only reason you lost your conviction appeal is
because your attorney never objected! 1It's as simple as that!"
[Atch. 16][AFF.#106]. The Superseding Indictment alleged that
Martinovich had, once again, tricked multiple law firms into
fraudulently authorizing the MICG Hedge Funds to pay for the
criminal defense and expert fees pursuant to the Indemnification
Provision of the funds' Operating Agreements and Private
Placement Memorandums - more Counts of Mail Fraud, Wire Fraud,
Money Laundering, and Conspiracy. Mr. Martinovich, once again,
provided overwhelming documentation of four separate law firms
involved in these transparent and compliant transactions. As
documented in Mr. Martinovich's contemporaneous notes and email
communications, Mr. Woodward then initiated his coercion to
ensure Martinovich 1) accepted counsel, 2) gave up his demands
for a second trial, and 3) eventually acquiesced to a fictitious
plea agreement inconsistent with the government's written
contract and the shocking re-sentencing. [Atchs. 1-32].

As this instant brief thoroughly documents, Mr. Martinovich
was held for eight months in the Western Tidewater Regional Jail

where Mr. Woodward repeatedly refused to pursue a defense at
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trial for the Superseding Indictment, even though Mr. Martinovich
provided counsel voluminous documentation of his innocence, as
well as verification of fraud on the Court for claims of illegal,
fraudulent, or unauthorized transactions. Second, as
Martinovich's contemporaneous documentation identifies, Mr.
Woodward repeatedly attempted to convince Martinovich that if he

stopped his "scorched earth strategy'" Martinovich would receive a

total, combined sentence of '"5-6 years,'" with Woodward even

submitting a Defense Position Paper (DPP) to the Court requesting
"3-5 years." Mr. Woodward repeated that this final comprehensive
sentence would be the result of a substantial downward variance

provided on the first case by, now, Judge Allen for "winning the

1 '

appeal' and "accepting responsibility,'" and the plea contract
confirmed that the second case must be no longer than the first
case, as well as it must run concurrently. [DPP, Atchs.
24,27,28,29]. Mr. Woodward solidified his coercion by personally
telling Mr. Martinovich's fiance, Ms. Ashleigh Amburn, "Worst
case scenario is six years, so don't let him do anything crazy."
[Amburn AFF.]. This agreement would have allowed Mr. Martinovich

to receive "time served" or a short amount of time left to

serve.

On September 29, 2016, the District Court conducted a joint
re-sentencing for Case 4:12crlOl and sentencing for Case
4:15cr50. The government presented three more witnesses to
testify of their financial losses across the initial case and the

allegations of the second case, Judge Allen read victim impact

letters from numerous shareholders relevant to both cases, and
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the conduct, effects, and causations were intertwined across each
case and sentencing calculus.

At Mr. Woodward's request, four corporate Presidents and
CEO's were in attendance in support of the defense to re-affirm
to the Court their separate employment offers for Mr.
Martinovich, as well as their proposals to immediately begin
restitution payments to the shareholders-victims. [AFF.#102].

Mr. Martinovich, and the packed courtroom for the defense,
quickly figured out that Mr. Woodward's '"5-6 year deal' was not
the plan of action for the day. Judge Allen spent a great deal
of time asserting her belief beyond a reasonable doubt that Mr.
Martinovich must be suffering from a mental disease or defect.
Judge Allen stated, '"It's something wrong with his brain...we're
going to get you mental health treatment...I'm not a doctor,
we're going to get you mental health treatment...it's complex and
sophisticated...you've got a very deep problem...I'm going to
recommend mental health treatment." [Tr. p.92-106].

Judge Allen re-sentenced Mr. Martinovich to, again, 140
months for Case 4:12cr101, and 63 months for Case 4:15c¢r50 with
39 months to run concurrently and 24 months to run consecutively.
Not only did the Court not follow Mr. Woodward's deal, the Court
also did not follow the plea contract. Now, Mr. Martinovich had
rejected a 3-year plea offer, gone to trial and received 12
years, then "won his appeal' and increased his sentence to 14
years. Mr. Woodward quickly exited the back of the courtroom,
and Martinovich's fiance ran after him. From the top of the
stairs, she yelled, 'Larry, what the hell happened?" Mr.

Woodward velled back from the bottom of the staircase, "He's
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lucky he didn't get twenty!" and exited the building. [Amburn

AFF.].

Following the September 29, 2016, sentencing-resentencing,
Mr. Martinovich filed a timely Motion in the Diétrict Court,
"Motion For Sentencing Modification To Vacate Fraudulent
Sentences, Plea Contract and Plea Acceptance Per F.R.Crim.P.
35(a) Clear Error." This Motion and this instant brief's Grounds
thoroughly document the erroneous allegations of the Superseding
Indictment and the corollary details of fraud and fraud on the
Court in bringing these allegations, and not rescinding said
indictment when noticed of fraud evidence. [Atchs. 1-
9][AFF.#52,#56].

Following Mr. Martinovich's indictment in Case 4:12cr101, he
met with his lead MICG attorney, Mr. Todd Lynn of PWHD in Newport
News, Virginia. Mr. Lynn initiated the procedures to invoke the
hedge funds' Indemnification Provisions for funding the defense.
Mr. Lynn worked closely with Mr. Benjamin Biard of Wilson Elser
in New York who represented MICG entities in numerous compliance
and securities matters. He coordinated with Mr. Andrew Shilling
of Shilling, Pass & Barlow in Chesapeake, Virginia, who
represented the independent interests of the MICG Venture
Strategies Fund which invested in EPV Solar. He worked with Ms.
Katherine Klocke of Akerman & Co. in Maimi, Flordia, who
represented the independent interests of the MICG Partners Fund
which funded certain venture fund liabilities. And, he
communicated with Mr. E.D. David of David Kamp & Frank in Newport

News, Virginia, who represented MICG Anchor Strategies Fund.
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Consistent with industry practices, securities laws, and MICG's
Private Placement Memorandums, Mr. Lynn orchestrated the multiple
opinion letters, collateral agreements, and significant

documentation to pay these expenses. [XL Specialty Ins. Co. v.

Level Global Investors (2nd Cir. 2012)]. [Atchs. 1,5,21]

[AFF.#59].

| Harbinger PLC, the Funds' auditors, fully accounted for the
liabilities and tax recordings, to include management fees,
expert payments, and the comprehensive list of other fund
expenses. [Atch. 4,8][AFF.#62]. When confronted with Mr.
Shilling's apparently less-than-truthful answers to the federal
agents investigating the payment process, lead attorney Mr. Lynn
responded, '"He's lying. He's scared. He misspoke talking to The
Feds and now he's scared to change his story!" [Instant Ground,

Rule 35, Atchs. 3,6,9, AFF.#58].

Following the September 29, 2016, sentencing-resentencing,
in one final meeting together, Mr. Martinovich instructed Mr.
Woodward to file timely appeal notices in Case Nos. 4:12cr101 and
4:15cr50, initiating Fourth Circuit Joined Appeal Nos. 16-4644
and 16-4648. At the close of the meeting, Mr. Wodoward stated,
"Two things I need you to know. If you end up filing a 2255,
everything must be in the original filing. Otherwise, it cannot
be considered. And, remember, you have never pled guilty to any
Counts in your big case. You have only pled guilty to one Count
on the second case, which really doesn't matter. The government
tried to put in your plea that you now pled guilty to the Counts

of the first case, and I wouldn't let them. You need to know

that." [Atch. 32][AFF.#36].
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Mr. Martinovich again petitioned the Fourth Circuit to
proceed pro se, but was again denied this right in contravention
to Fourth Circuit Rule 46(f). Also, this time, after all brief
submissions were filed, the Fourth Circuit declined to consider
Mr. Martinovich's Pro Se Supplemental Brief. The Fourth Circuit
appointed appeals counsel, Mr. Edwin Brooks of Richmond,
Virginia. Following zero interviews or conferences with his
client Martinovich, Mr. Brooks submitted a Brief on the Merits
including only one sentencing error issue, which issue was not
outside the scope of the plea agreement waiver, and therefore
dismissed by the Appeals Court.[Atch. #37]. Mr. Martinovich's
Pro Se Supplemental Brief contained multiple Constitutional
violations which were allowable as outside the scope of the
waiver provision pursuant to Fourth Circuit precedent, and were
also specifically permitted pursuant to the plain language of the
plea agreement. Once the Fourth Circuit reviewed both briefs,
the Court denied counsel's brief as to the waiver provision, and
declined to even consider the Pro Se Supplemental Brief. [Nos.
16-4644/16-4648, Doc. 77].

Mr. Brooks and Mr. Martinovich each filed Petitions to
Review En Banc pursuant to Local Rule 40(b)(i) noting "a material
fact was overlooked in the decision" reference the denial to
consider Martinovich's Pro Se Brief, yet these petitions were
also denied. [Doc. S0].

Proceeding pro se, Mr. Martinovich filed a Petition for Writ
of Certiorari to the Supreme Court with the question, "Whether an
Indigent Appellant Whom is Refused Self-Representation and

Permission to Submit a Pro Se Supplemental Brief is Denied His

28
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Due Process and Equal Protection Rights, Particularly in
Comparison to an Indigent Appellant Whose Counsel files a Brief

Pursuant to Anders v. California." The Supreme Court declined to

hear the case. [No. 17-5643, 8/4/17].

Following the September 29, 2016, sentencing-resentencing
and the subsequent filing of appeal, the government unilaterally
moved the District Court to modify the Restitution Orders for
Case Nos. 4:12cr101 and 4:15cr50. Pursuant to M.V.R.A. and
relevant statutes, Mr. Martinovich objected to the modifications.
The District Court granted the government's motions, sua sponte
in the first instance and then construed as a Rule 36
modification in the second instance. Martinovich timely appealed
the Orders to the Fourth Circuit, yet was again denied. [Nos. 17-
6651/17-6652]. Mr. Martinovich also filed a Motion Pursuant to
FRCP 60 (b)(3) to Object to Government Breach of Contract in Case
4:12cr101 and 4:15c¢r50, where the government had promised
"restitution would be determined at sentencing.'" Said Motion
timely preserved in the District Court the objection to this

breach. [Doc. 60].

On June 22, 2017, Mr. Martinovich filed in the District
Court a Motion for Disqualification of District Court Judge Allen
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 455. This Motion was denied and Mr.
Martinovich filed a Writ of Mandamus with the Fourth Circuit
Court of Appeals. [No. 17-2457].

These Motions respectfully request Judge Allen's recusal in
light of her strongly asserted beliefs that (1) Martinovich

requires deep and complex mental health treatment without having
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ordered a psycholoeical examination or competency hearing, (2) in
reference to trial counsel, Mr. James Broccoletti, a primary
subject of the § 2255 Motion's claims Qf ineffective assistance,
Judge Allen asserted, "For those of you who don't know Mr.
Broccoletti, if he's not the best attorney in Virginia, he's one
of the best...and I would venture to say across the United States
of America," and (3) in reference to resentencing counsel, Mr.
Lawrence Woodward, also a primary subject of the § 2255 Motion's
claims of ineffective assistance, Judge Allen asserted, ''Mr.
Woodward is right there shoulder to shoulder...toe to toe...with
the best attorney in Virginia...and I would venture to say across

the United States of America." [Sent. Tr. p.90-91].

On January 3, 2018, Mr. Martinovich filed a Motion to Recall
the Mandate in Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals Case No. 13-4828,
which Order previously vacated the sentence and replaced the
judge in Case No. 4:12cr101, yet upheld the conviction primarily
based upon the plain error standard of review restrictions.
Subsequent to this decision, the Fourth Circuit vacated the

conviction in United States v. Lefsih and the Seventh Circuit

vacated the conviction in United States v. El-Bey, with both

cases possessing nearly indistinguishable legal factors with

United States v. Martinovich, only diverging with the final

decision. All three cases included egregious interference and
bias by the district judge at trial, exacerbating jury
instruction errors, the government themselves feeling compelled

to intercede at trial to protect the record, the Appeals Court

determining there was sufficient evidence, and the trial court

30
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errors not being preserved at trial therefore forcing plain error
review by the Appeals Court. Yet, Messrs. Lefsih and El-Bey's
convictions were overturned with the Court stating, "(t)he
unfairness of the trial require(d) reversal. Any other holding
would constitute the ‘adoption of the principle that a defendant
the court thinks is obviously guilty is not entitled to a fair
trial." But, Mr. Martinovich's conviction was upheld despite the
Court stating, "More importantly, such conduct challenges the
fairness of the proceedings...such conduct tends to undermine the
public's confidence in the integrity of the judiciary."
Following a substantial government response requested by the
Fourth Circuit, and a Martinovich Reply, Mr. Martinovich's Recall

the Mandate was Denied on January 29, 2018.

On March 4, 2018, Mr. Martinovich filed two Petitions to
vacate his conviction and sentence pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255,
one in Case 4:12cr101 (4:18cv28) "Case 1," and one for Case
4:15cr50 (4:18cv27) "case 2," along with a 304-fact Affidavit in
Support, as well as 43 Exhibits of contemporaneous documentation
and supporting Affidavits. In Case 2, the District Court dismissed
all ten (10) substantial Grounds without an evidentiary hearing
and without even permitting the Government to respond to the
substantial evidence presented. Currently, Case 2 is before the
Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals requesting a certificate of
appealability. 1In Case 1, in contravention to Rule 4 demanding
immediate action, the District Court delayed ten (10) months
before even ordering the Government to respond to the eighteen (18)

non-frivolous, non-conclusory Grounds which demand vacation

31
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of conviction and sentence. Currently, responses and replies

have been filed, and Mr. Martinovich awaits the District Court's

response, five years later.

[see Martinovich Amended Affidavit at Doc. #293 Case 4:12cr101;
43 Exhibits at Doc. #280 Case 4:12cr101]
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